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Fore Well 



The Kings Lodging 

Dating from the 15 th century, this building has been con¬ 
siderably added to and altered. The northern or higher part. 

L 







“in consideration of thair dangerous standing upon ledders,” 
and to others who harled the walls from hanging cradles; one of 
these, “Johnne Thomsone” by name, received additional com¬ 
pensation for “the waisting and wyring of his clothes,” while 
undertaking the work. John Reid, a smith, received a small 
sum for “drink on his brydall day in consideration of his good 

“His Majesties’ Armes” throughout the Castle were painted 
and gilded, the chimneys and doors of the new Hall were treated 
in imitation of marble, and John Sawers received the sum of 
£16, 13s. 4&, Scots, for “furnesing all maner of colloures for 
painting of his Majesties’ bed that was sent up to London.” 

Queen Mary's Room 

Within an older building, to the south of that already described, 
is the little room where Queen Mary gave birth to her son James, 
who was the first King of the three Kingdoms of England, 
Scotland, and Ireland. This small apartment, entered from the 
Chamber known as “Queen Mary’s Room,” is panelled in oak: 
this is restoration work. The upper part of the walls is lined with 
boards, probably of Queen Mary’s time, and the ceiling is similarly 
treated; it is divided into four panels by moulded ceiling ribs. 
The coat-of-arms, the prayer, the Royal Crowned Monograms, 
M.R. & J.R., and the date 19th June 1566, were according to 
the building accounts either introduced or repainted in June 
1617, by John Anderson, who received £100 Scots, in payment. 
The coat-of-arms is that of the Royal House of Stewart. Under, 
in Gothic letters, is the verse: 

In Queen Mary’s time the window of this small apartment 
was divided by a stone mullion and transome. 

Queen Mary’s Room had an oriel window corresponding to 
those of the apartment to the north. It contains an oak chair of 
early 17th century date, the only piece of furniture remaining 
which has any claim to an old association with the Castle. 

The room to the west of Queen Mary’s has been used as a 
kitchen. The room above, with the large window, was formerly 





14 THE CASTLE OF EDINBURGH: DESCRIPTION 
stone roof. The great kitchen was to the west of the Hall and 
above the bakehpuse, but the building appears to have been 
demolished sometime in the 17th century, the site being occupied 
later by a battery, and, in Queen Anne’s time, by the little barrack 
block now occupying the west side of the Courtyard. This 
Barrack was built in 1707 for officers’ and ministers’ quarters. 
It is now adapted to form a Museum in connection with the 
Scottish National War Memorial. 

Casemates 

Under the Hall and under the southern part of the Queen Anne 
building are the Casemates, great vaulted chambers. The vaults 
immediately under the Hall form a double storey, the upper ones 
being entered from the outside walk on the south. Two of 
these vaults were prisons which had, at one time, only small 
narrow airshafts instead of the present window-openings. The 
casemates had stairways leading up to the Hall and to the Court¬ 
yard. The larger vaults were used as a prison at the end of the 
18th century, and also during the Napoleonic period, for Dutch 
and French prisoners of war. The prison features of the doors 
and windows still remain. On three pine doors the following 
names of privateersmen occur, ducatez, de beugnies, piere 
JEAN LE FEVRE, MICHCL BRANSOYS BARC ONOU, ANTONEANRIS 
lacorinia, lionard moti & peter garrick ; these are dated 
1781, and appear along with crude knife carvings of ships, a 
running stag, a stag’s head, gallows and a guillotine. One of 
the ships has a North American flag, indicating that one of the 
sailors had fought in the service of that country. Carved on one 
of the rybats of the west entrance is: “Charles jobier de cal- 
aise, 1780,” and on another, “1780, proyol prisonnier (?) 
NEE NATIFFE DE BOURBOUURG.” 

On the north side of the Castlehill, underlying the rock, is 
the ruin of the Wellhouse Tower. Immediately above this, on 
the top of the crag, is a bastion on which stood the crane used in 
bringing up the water from the Wellhouse. An elaborate scheme 
for a hand-chain pump in two stages was contemplated in the 
18th century, but it was never carried into effect. 
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20 THE CASTLE OF EDINBURGH! HISTORY 

and were used for the coronations of James VI and Charles I. 
The loyalty and ingenuity of certain persons, including the wife 
of the minister of Dunnottar, and a burgess wife of Edinburgh, 
contrived to preserve them from Cromwell and the fate of the 
Crown jewels of England. They were replaced in the Castle at 
the Restoration, which they left only for the meetings of the Scots 
Parliament. Carried in state at the last of these, that “end of an 
auld sang,” they were restored to their chest in the jewel room to 
be lost to sight till 1818 when, thanks in part to Sir Walter Scott, 
they were re-discovered and restored to the place which they now 
occupy. 

The Castle and the English 

But the story of the national treasures has gone far beyond the 
time of Edward I. He visited Edinburgh in the summer of 1291, 
stayed one night in the Castle, and received there homage from 
some of the Scots. It is recorded that on the 8th July in the 
chapel of the Castle he received the homage of the Abbot of 
Holyrood. A few weeks later, in the same place, the Abbess of 
Haddington swore fealty, and in the King’s chamber, formerly 
known as the chamber of the Blessed Margaret, the Prior of the 
Knights Hospitallers and the Preceptor of the Templars in 
Scotland did likewise. 

The reign of John Balliol was short and disastrous: in 1296 
the King of England advanced upon Scotland, meeting with 
little resistance after the capture and sack of Berwick-on-Tweed. 
When, in the spring of 1296, he besieged the Castle with “engines 
which cast stones over the walls, sore beating and bruising the 
buildings within,” it surrendered after eight days. It remained in 
English hands till 1313, and considerable pains were taken to 
garrison and provision it. In 1; there was a garrison of 347 

ir attendants, priests, clerks. 

A surprise attack by Sir Thomas Randolph, Earl of Moray, 
nephew of Robert the Bruce, recaptured the fortress in 1313. 
Led by a certain William Francis, formerly of the garrison, a 
party of about thirty men climbed the rock, probably on the 
west side, and surprised the defenders. According to a legend 
of the day, this fulfilled a prophecy of St. Margaret. By the 
King’s command the buildings and fortifications were utterly 
destroyed, except the sainted Queen’s chapel. That this was 
intentionally spared is proved by the instructions given by him 
on his deathbed for the repair of the chapel, and for the endow- 
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THE CASTLE ROCK 
[By permission of the Trustees of the British Museum 

a proposed “forework ” which was never constructed. 
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By the time of his son, James IV, the Castle was no longer 
considered fit for a royal residence and other palaces took its 
place. Yet the King was there frequently enough. He attended 
H ■' ' ' 1 on St. Margaret’s day. A great attrac- 

er-gunner, James Borthwick, worked 
—7--,-i King was often present at the casting 

of his cannon. The famous guns known as the Seven Sisters of 
Borthwick were cast there. Among other diversions. Tames IV 

in the royal cl 
tion was that his n_0_ 
within the Castle, for the King w 

delighted in tournaments, and there are records of several which 
took place in the Barras. It was the King who built the chapel 
near the Barras and provided for a chaplain to shrive the contest¬ 
ants in the tournaments and to offer daily prayers for himself and 
for the soul’s health of his predecessors. Among these tourna¬ 
ments was one, before 1501, when a German knight. Sir John 
Clokbuis or Coupance, was met and vanquished by Sir Patrick 
Hamilton. In others the King himself took part, notably the 
“Black Lady” tournament, when he, disguised as a black knight, 
upheld the sable charms of a Mooress. It was from the Castle, 
that the Queen, Margaret Tudor, watched the sport. 

As the tournaments make an interlude in the grim history of 
the fortress, so do some entries in the accounts of the Lord High 
Treasurer of Scotland. These tell how, between 1504 and 1507, 
there lived in the Castle a little natural daughter of the King, the 
Lady Margaret. She seems to have been well cared-for—as 
the accounts tell of clothes, gold beads, a service book, and 
dancing lessons. She had three attendants about her own age, 
Marjorie Lindesay and two Moorish girls, for whom clothes 
were provided, the latter being dressed in gay colours, red, green. 

But the warlike plans of France brought an end to pleasant 
things. The Castle became a centre of preparations for war. In 
spite of warnings, supernatural and other, the host mustered on 
the Boroughmuir: the guns, including the Seven Sisters, were 
•Bagged from the fortress; and the King with his great army 
marched for the Border. There on the three low hills of Flodden 
where the King, surrounded by the flower of the nation, lay dead, 
vanished the prosperity of the kingdom. And the desolate 
burgesses of Edinburgh set about building the Flodden Wall 
which started from David’s Tower down to and across the 
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On the 22nd May a part of David’s Tower fell under bombardment. 
Two days later another part fell, choking the great well. Still 
the garrison held out, in spite of drought, till an English attack 
captured the Spur, the outworks defending the eastern approach 
to the Castle, and on the 29th, Grange surrendered to the English 
commander. In spite of the terms of surrender, the principal 
members of the garrison were given up to the Earl of Morton, 
among them Grange and his brother, Maitland of Lethington 
and two Edinburgh goldsmiths, John Mossman and James 
Cockie. Lethington escaped public execution, dying, as was 
suspected, by his own hand; Grange and his brother and the 
two goldsmiths were hanged at the Market Cross and their heads 
placed on the “maist eminent places of the castell wall.” Even 
the Earl of Morton thought expedient to excuse the executions 
to the English commander. He threw the blame for the breach 
of the terms of surrender upon the ministers. 

The 'building of the Half Moon Battery and Royal Apartments 

The Castle had suffered severely by the siege, and the Regent 
Morton started at once to rebuild it. On the place where David’s 
Tower had stood, over what was left of the building, rose the 
Half Moon Battery. George Douglas of Parkhead, a relation of 
the Regent, was made Captain and, like Grange, was, for a time, 
provost of Edinburgh. Having been guilty of an attack on the 
townsfolk, it was suggested by Morton that he should be removed 
because of the “grudge and misliking” likely to ensue. The 
Town Council were curiously reluctant to part with their Provost, 
but yielded to the persuasions of the Privy Council. An explana¬ 
tion of their position may be that the emplacement of the guns 
in the new battery commanded the Lawnmarket. Douglas was 
succeeded in 1585 by Sir James Home of Cowdenknowes, whose 
appointment was ratified by Parliament. He is called Keeper of 
the King’s munitions and artillery as well as of the Honours and 
was granted £800 from the great customs of Edinburgh and from 
the King’s thirds of benefices. 

From this time the Castle ceases to be more than a fortress 
occasionally visited by the Kings of Scotland. Indeed, less than 
thirty years later the Kings were no more than rare visitors to 

Though James VI had few personal relations with the Castle, 
during his reign much was done for it. In 1584 he assigned 
certain sums for its upkeep. The accounts of the King’s Masters 
of Work for 161$ to 1617 show considerable activity in building 
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ByThe death of Queen Anne and the accession of George I gave 
fresh impetus to the Jacobite plans. The rising of the ’15 was 
the occasion for another attempt to seize the Castle. Poorly 



thence by night to join the march which ended in defeat at 
Preston. A manuscript in the City Chambers contains an order 
by one of the Secretaries of State to the Lord Provost to examine 
the rebels of the common sort, imprisoned in the Castle and 
elsewhere in the Town, to find which of them had deserted from 
Borlum before the battle. On 23rd May 1716 the Provost and one 
of the bailies went to the Castle and called before them the ninety- 
two prisoners there. It was found that some of them had been 
captured as stragglers near Calder Moss, others near Edinburgh 
and others on die Border. It was declared by them that none 
had ever received money from the Earl of Mar. 

In 1728 General Wade reported on the fortifications in Scotland. 
In his opinion “nothing had been effectually done to secure them 
from the danger of a surprise to which they have been exposed 
these many years past.” He named particularly the Castle, 
“which I humbly conceive is a place of the greatest importance 
to the safety of that part of your Majesty’s Dominions.” He went 
on to describe how the walls were so ruinous, after the shutting 
of the gates, soldiers could easily find a way into the town. To 
prove his point four soldiers, some with full equipment, were 
ordered to try to climb the rock and get over the wall. So simple 
did this prove that “from the common road they mounted into 
the Castle in less than five minutes.” 

Prince Charlie in Edinburgh 

The last defence of the Castle was in 1745. Upon the alarm 
of the approach of Prince Charles Edward and his Highlanders, 
the city endeavoured to prepare for defence. Nothing was in 
any state of preparedness but the Castle. There the citizens sent 
their valuables and the banks their money and papers. Arms 
were issued by the Governor to the hastily-formed regiments of 
volunteers, but, at the news of the Prince’s approach to Kirk¬ 
liston, enthusiasm for battle waned, and most of the weapons 
found their way back mysteriously to the Castle store. The 
Highlanders of Lochiel having forced an entrance at the Nether- 
bow, the Prince’s troops occupied the city from the 22nd Sept¬ 
ember to the 31 st October. A contemporary newspaper remarked 
that: “the Highlanders behave civilly and pay cheerfully for 
what they get.” A blockade of the Castle was begun, but after a 
false alarm of an attack. General Preston, who had taken over 
the command from General Guest, began a bombardment of 
the city. The inhabitants, alarmed at the prospect, begged the 
Prince to remove his picket at the Castle Hill. He refused, but 
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